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We at Ceylon Tea Brokers 
PLC take pride in our 
accomplishments. Our company’s 
steadfast growth and tangible 
results clearly reflect our 
dedication to maintaining a 
high standard of service with 
the objective of achieving a 
significant presence in the Tea 
Trade.

We value hard work, team 
spirit and an uncompromised 
performance in an era of 
competitiveness and change.

It is noteworthy that we have 
positioned ourselves as the debut 
stand-alone tea broking company 
to be listed on the Colombo Stock 
Exchange. Our reputation is 
built on a foundation of values, 
business ethics and an impetus 
for continuous growth.

We honour the faith you have 
placed in us with single minded 
dedication and professional 
integrity. We will continue 
evolving to reach new zenith of 
success…thus justifying your 
confidence so that as we evolve 
your investment grows with us.

GROW 
GROW 

As we

you shall

with us
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Vision

Mission

Core 
Values

To be a dynamic and leading service
organisation.

In our core business of tea broking, to be the 
preferred choice of the industry.

Provide a professional and fully-integrated 
service, thus adding value to our clients, 
employees, shareholders and the country.

Be a socially responsible corporate citizen.

Ability
Credibility
Integrity
Team Work
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Financial Highlights

Mn

Revenue Profit Before Taxation

Mn259.2 77.2

Three Year Summary as at 31st March  2014 2013 2012 

  Rs. Mn. Rs. Mn. Rs. Mn.

Revenue  259.19 203.82 *185.81
Expenses  (261.42) (193.02) *(166.84)
Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation  77.23 56.43 *64.02
Profit/(Loss) for the Year  56.20 39.77 *56.52
Total Assets  1,419.30 1,038.99 *857.16
Shareholders’ Fund  186.31 149.79 *138.58

  2014 2013 2012 

  Rs. Mn. Rs. Mn. Rs. Mn.

Return on Shareholders’ Funds After Tax  30.16% 26.51% *40.37%
Return on assets After Tax  3.96% 3.82% *6.53%
Net Assets per Share  1.63 1.31 *1.22
Earnings per Share  0.49 0.35 0.50

*Adjusted with the transition to LKAS & SLFRS
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Chairman’s Message

These higher values 
demonstrate that not only 
were the Colombo Auction 
Average Prices more than 
other Auction Centers, 
but also the fact that tea 
exports from Sri Lanka have 
a much higher component 
of value added teas when 
compared with other tea 
exporting countries. We must 
ensure that this established 
position is not eroded with 
the emergence of regional 
destinations for value 
addition.
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I am pleased to present my message 
for the year 2013/14. The year under 
review has seen encouraging results 
for the Company. Before dealing with 
the Company details, I would like to 
highlight a few macroeconomic features 
of our country and the performance of 
the Tea Industry during the calendar 
year 2013.

Sri Lankan Economy

According to the Central Bank Report 
for 2013, the Sri Lankan economy 
recorded a GDP growth of 7.3% in 2013. 
The agricultural sector grew 4.7% whilst 
industry and services advanced by 9.9% 
and 6.4% respectively. The per capita 
income has been stated as US$3,280. All 
in all, a satisfactory performance for the 
country.

Sri Lankan Tea Industry

Tea Production (Mn/Kg)

Elevation 2013 2012 2011

High Grown 75.8 73.6 78.2

Mid Grown 56.1 52.6 52.6

Low Grown 208.1 202.1 196.7

Total 340.0 328.4 327.5

Tea Production reached an all time 
high of 340.0 million kilos surpassing 
the previous best of 331.4 million kilos 
achieved in 2010. Compared with 2012, 
the gain was as much as 11.6 million 
kilos. Low Growns continue to lead the 
way with over 60% of the production 

and at 208.1 million kilos is the highest on record surpassing the previous best of 202.1 
million kilos achieved in 2012. High & Mid Grown production was also higher than 2012 
at 75.8 million kilos and 56.1 million kilos respectively, although not all time records.

Colombo Auction Averages (per Kilo)

Elevation 2013 2012 2011

LKR USD 

Equivalent

LKR USD 

Equivalent

LKR USD 

Equivalent

High Grown 402.98 3.12 375.53 2.94 329.95 2.98

Mid Grown 398.65 3.09 351.08 2.75 319.77 2.89

Low Grown 469.91 3.64 407.14 3.19 381.27 3.45

Total 444.42 3.44 391.64 3.07 359.89 3.26

The above table reflects the strong performance of the teas sold at the Colombo 
Tea Auctions. Average prices for all categories in rupee terms and corresponding 
US Dollar equivalents are all time records. These results clearly demonstrate the 
competitiveness of the Colombo Tea Auctions.

Tea Exports (including Re-exports with Imported Tea)

Year Quantity 

Mn/Kg

Value 

(Rs./Bn)

Average 

FOB Price 

Per kg 

(Rs.)

Approx. 

Value 

(USD/Bn)

Average 

FOB Price 

per kg (USD 

Equivalent)

2013 319.66 199.44 623.91 1.54 4.83

2012 319.95 180.43 563.94 1.41 4.42

2011 322.56 164.85 511.08 1.49 4.62

In volume terms, total exports at 319.66 million kilos is lower than the corresponding 
figures for 2011 & 2012, which could be considered somewhat disappointing given the all 
time record production in 2013. This is however more than compensated for by the all 
time record export earnings in rupee terms as well as the US Dollar equivalent. These 
improved earnings are a result of the substantially higher FOB prices per kilo.

It is noteworthy to highlight that this is the first occasion Tea Export Earnings 
expressed in US Dollars, have surpassed US$1.5 Billion.
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Global Perspective

Sri Lanka is the fourth largest producer 
of tea, substantially below China with 
approximately 1,850 million kilos, India 
1,200 million kilos and Kenya at 432 
million kilos. In volume of exports, Sri 
Lanka ranks third behind Kenya and 
China. It is however significant that in 
spite of the lower quantity of exports, 
Sri Lanka achieved the highest revenue 
from tea exports. These higher values 
demonstrate that not only were the 
Colombo Auction Average Prices more 
than other Auction Centers, but also 
the fact that tea exports from Sri Lanka 

have a much higher component of value added teas when compared with other tea 
exporting countries. We must ensure that this established position is not eroded with 
the emergence of regional destinations for value addition. This should be achieved by 
adopting the correct strategies of maintaining the competitiveness for value added tea 
exports from Sri Lanka whilst safeguarding the image of pure “Ceylon Tea”. This is the 
“WIN - WIN” situation we must strive to achieve.

A point of concern that was highlighted in my message last year, which I would like 
to reaffirm this year is that out of the five largest tea importing countries, i.e. Russian 
Federation, United Kingdom, Pakistan, USA and Egypt, Sri Lanka has a significant 
market share only in Russia. Therefore whilst the Colombo Auction is still the most 
dynamic marketing center, Sri Lanka should try and improve our presence in these 
large importing countries in addition to consolidating our position in the existing 
markets as well as in the emerging tea importing countries. In this respect, we have 
seen some encouraging reports of a global marketing campaign that is likely to be 
implemented shortly headed by the Sri Lanka Tea Board. We hope this would commence 
as soon as possible to establish our presence on a wider global scale.

Company Performance

The Chief Executive Officer’s Review together with the Directors’ Report and Financial 
Statements would give detailed information relating to the performance of the 
Company. Let me however set out a few important details, which would be of specific 
interest to our Shareholders, covering the financial year 2013/14 compared with 2012/13.
 

2013/14 2012/13

Quantity of Tea Marketed through the Company (Mn/kgs) 33.3 29.6

Value of Tea Marketed through the Company (Rs./Mn) 16,131 12,443

Revenue Generated by the Company (Rs./Mn) 259.2 203.8

Profit after Tax (Rs./Mn) 56.2 39.8

Total Equity (Rs./Mn) 186.3 149.8

The above table reflects the significant improvement in the performance of the 
Company in 2013/14. It must however be pointed out that the final profit was impacted 
due to a total provisioning of Rs.37.5 million in 2013/14 compared with Rs.10.9 million 
in 2012/13. Rs.23 million of this figure was for specific prudential provisioning covering 
long outstanding balances. Notwithstanding this charge, we are continuing our efforts 

Chairman Review Contd.

High Grown 75.8 Mn/kg 22% 
Mid Grown 56.1 Mn/kg 17% 
Low Grown 208.1 Mn/kg 61% 

Sri Lanka Tea Production 2013 
Elevation wise
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to recover these dues through legal 
proceedings.

Going forward, the financial support 
we offer our clients will be in strict 
accordance with a clearly laid out 
credit policy and closely monitored by 
the Credit Review & Risk Management 
Committees. This will ensure that this 
important avenue of service, which has 
to be provided by the Brokers will add 
value and prove to be mutually beneficial 
to the clients and the Company.

In spite of this additional provisioning, 
our Shareholders will be pleased to 
note that the profit after tax for 2013/14 
at Rs.56.2 million is well above Rs.39.8 
million in 2012/13 and only marginally 
behind the Rs.56.5 million achieved 
in 2011/12, which is the highest on 
record. Therefore, if not for this special 
charge, 2013/14 would have comfortably 
exceeded the previous all time high in 
keeping with the improvement in all 
other parameters indicated in the above 
table. This demonstrates the growth of 
the Company.

Our comparatively young Management 
Team must be congratulated on this 
performance. I am confident that they 
would continue with their efforts as a 
cohesive group to further develop the 
Company in the years ahead.

Dividends

In keeping with the policy consistently 
adopted by the Directors, 50% of our 
profits were transferred to reserves and 
the balance distributed as Dividends. 
This has enabled us to declare a first and 
final Dividend of 25 Cents per share for 
2013/14, which was paid to Shareholders 
on the 18th of July 2014. This compares 
with 17 Cents per share declared for the 
financial year 2012/13.

Future Developments

One of the core areas of our business 
is to provide warehousing services to 
our clients for storage of teas pending 
sale. With the expansion of our client 
profile, we are in the process of actively 
examining the possibility of investing 
in a Warehousing Complex taking into 
consideration the increasing demand for 
these facilities.

Acknowledgements

My appreciation to my colleagues on 
the Board for their valuable input and 
guidance. To the Management & Staff 
at all levels I convey my thanks for their 
loyalty, dedication and professionalism 
in ensuring a successful year for our 
Company. To our clients, our gratitude 
for giving us the privilege of serving 
them and thereby enhancing our 
corporate objectives. To our Bankers, 
Colombo Brokers’ Association, 
Colombo Tea Traders’ Association 

and other organizations connected 
with Tea Industry, particularly the Sri 
Lanka Tea Board and the Ministry of 
Plantation Industries for their continued 
support. Our grateful thanks to all our 
Shareholders for your confidence in the 
Company, which gives encouragement 
for the future.

Concluding Thought

Let me leave you with our corporate 
theme that we reaffirmed with our 
Management at the beginning of this 
year:

“Be Competent, 
  Be Competitive, 
  Be Compliant.”

Chrisantha Perera

Chairman

26th June 2014
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Chief Executive Officer’s Review

The company during the financial 
year under review performed 
exceptionally well compared to the 
previous year, with most of these 
achievements, the highest ever in its 
history.
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I take pleasure in presenting my review 
for the financial year 2013/ 2014. The year 
under review has been one of the most 
successful years for the company.

The Chairman’s message summarizes 
many aspects of the Sri Lankan tea 
industry. I would also like to highlight 
some record breaking achievements 
during the calendar year 2013.

Achievements of the Sri Lankan 
Tea Industry in the Calendar Year 
2013

•	 All time high tea production of 
340 Million Kilos, surpassing the 
previous best of 331.4 Million Kilos 
achieved in 2010.

•	 All time high Colombo Tea Auction 
averages for all categories in rupee 
terms as well as in corresponding 
US Dollar values, as given below. 

Elevation 2013

LKR USD

Equivalent

High Grown 402.98 3.12

Mid Grown 398.65 3.09

Low Grown 469.91 3.64

T o t a l 444.42 3.44

•	 All time high export earnings in 
rupee terms amounting to Rs. 
199.44 Billion. This achievement in 
US Dollar equivalent would be 1.54 

Billion. It should be mentioned that 
this is the first time in the history of 
Sri Lankan Tea Industry that export 
earnings has exceeded the magical 
figure of US$ 1.5 Billion.

Global Scene

The International Tea Committee has 
revealed that the global tea production 
reached 4,819,000 metric tons in 2013 as 
against 4,608,000 metric tons in 2012. 
This is an increase of 211,000 metric tons 
or 4.5% over 2012. The major contributors 
towards the increased global tea 
production in 2013 are;

China - 1,850,000 MT
India - 1,200,000 MT
Kenya - 432,000 MT
Sri Lanka - 340,000 MT
Vietnam - 170,000 MT

In keeping with the increased tea crop, 
total exports have also moved up from 
1,772,800 MT in 2012 to 1,865,000 MT in 
2013. However, the percentage of global 
tea crop exported was only 39%. This 
indicates the substantial retention in 
some of the large producer countries for 
internal consumption. China was the 
biggest consumer with an estimated 
volume of 1,500,000 MT in 2013, followed 
by India 912,000 MT. The largest 
tea importing country was Russian 
Federation with 178,000 MT.

Company performances for the 
year 2013/2014

Financial Performances
The company during the financial year 
under review performed exceptionally 
well compared to the previous year, 
with most of these achievements, the 
highest ever in its history. I am pleased 
to present you with some of these key 
details.

•	 In terms of value the company has 
handled teas worth over Rs.16.131 
Billion, compared with Rs.12.443 
Billion during the preceding year, an 
increase of 30%.

•	 The company recorded a gross 
profit of Rs.202.6 Million as against 
Rs.154.5 Million last year registering 
a 31% increase.

•	 The Profit before tax at Rs.77.2 
Million as against Rs.56.4 Million 
the previous year is a 37% increase.

•	 Profit after tax of Rs.56.2 Million as 
against Rs.39.8 Million achieved in 
2012/2013 was an improvement of 41%.

Market Share

Ceylon Tea Brokers PLC marketed 33.3 
Million kilos during the financial year 
compared to 29.6 Million Kilos in the 
preceding year, a 12.5% increase.

We are pleased to place on record that 
our company, over a comparatively 
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We are pleased to 
place on record that 
our company, over a 
comparatively short 
span has grown to 
be a major player 
in Tea Broking, 
commanding an 
overall market share 
of over 10%.

I would like to take 
this opportunity 
to congratulate 
our team, who 
has worked with 
great passion and 
commitment to make 
these achievements 
possible.

short span has grown to be a major 
player in Tea Broking, commanding an 
overall market share of over 10%. In the 
Low Grown segment, Ceylon Tea Brokers 
PLC now accounts for around 15%. I 
would like to take this opportunity to 
congratulate our team, who has worked 
with great passion and commitment to 
make these achievements possible.

Following the success in the Low Grown 
segment, the Management team is now 
focusing in having a greater presence in 
the High and Medium categories. 
 

Ceylon Tea Brokers PLC, continue 
to encourage and advise our clients 
to produce high quality teas geared 
to market requirements. Towards 
this end we have strengthened our 
Manufacturing advisory team, which 
enables us to make regular visits to our 
producer clients.

We will continually look at ways of 
improving our service levels to our 
customers and are consistently looking 
at the latest trends in the market place. 
As an initiative in this regard we have 
invested in professional personnel, to 

Chief Executive Officer’s Review Contd.
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assess the tea market and analyze the 
potential of our clients in order to serve 
them better.

We as a company strive to have the right 
people, in the right place. The Human 
Resources Unit of our parent company, 
Capital Alliance Holdings, together 
with our Management Team, have 
developed a comprehensive HR Policy, 
which has contributed to managing, 
retaining and attracting talent to the 
company. In keeping with this policy, 
we are encouraging our employees to 
participate in the appropriate training 
programs, the costs of which are borne 
by the company.

A comprehensive Risk Management 
process focused on the identification 
and evaluation of existing and potential 
risks with appropriate mitigation 
options is in place. In keeping with this 
process we have developed a Credit 
Policy which is strictly monitored and 
adhered to. We continually meet with 
the Risk Management Committee, a 
subcommittee of the Board of Directors, 
as well as having regular Credit Review 
meetings.

As mentioned in the Chairman’s 
message, we are looking at the 
possibility of moving forward with 
the proposed Warehousing Project, 
in order to enhance the quality of our 
service to all our clients. This would be 
an important part of our next phase of 
development.

Acknowledgement

I would like to take this opportunity to 
thank the Board of Directors, Chaired 
by Mr.C.P.R.Perera, for their confidence 
placed in us and for their guidance and 
encouragement. I am grateful to our 
Management Team and Staff at all levels 
for their dedication and commitment 
during the year, without which these 
results would not have been possible. 
My appreciation to our loyal clients for 
the opportunity given to serve them, 
and to be a part of their success, which 
in turn assisted us to reach our goals 
and targets during the year. Our thanks 
to the Colombo Brokers’ Association, 
Colombo Tea Traders’ Association, 
Sri Lanka Tea Board and to all other 
organizations associated with the Tea 
Industry. I wish to thank our valuable 
shareholders for their confidence placed 
in the company.

We look forward with confidence to build 
on the success of the past year and reach 
greater heights in the future.

Suranga Perera

Director / Chief Executive Officer

26th June 2014
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Board of Directors

Chrisantha Perera
Chairman

Associated with the Tea 
Industry for over 50 years. 
Retired as Chairman/CEO 
of Forbes & Walker Ltd 
in 2005 after serving this 
Company for 44 years. A 
former Chairman of the Sri 
Lanka Tea Board, Sri Lanka 
Insurance Corporation Ltd., 
Public Enterprises Reform 
Commission and Bank of 
Ceylon. A member of the Tea 
Council.

Presently serves on the 
Boards of two Plantation 
Companies and their 
respective holding 
Companies as well as a 
number of other public listed 
and private companies. 
He is also a Director of 
the Sri Lanka Business 
Development Centre.

Ajith Fernando
Managing Director

Mr. Fernando is a Fellow of 
the Chartered Institute of 
Management Accountants, 
United Kingdom and 
holds an MA in Financial 
Economics from the 
University of Colombo. He 
founded Capital Alliance in 
the year 2000 and currently 
functions as group MD/CEO. 
Prior to this he has worked 
with some of the leading 
financial institutions in Sri 
Lanka and has over 25 years 
experience in the money and 
capital markets. 

Suranga Perera
Director / Chief Executive 
Officer 

Mr. Perera who holds 
a Masters in Business 
Administration from the 
Edith Cowan University, 
Australia has over fifteen 
years of tea broking 
experience. 

He commenced his career 
at Forbes & Walker Limited 
and there after joined Asia 
Siyaka Commodities (Pvt) 
Ltd, where he served for 12 
years. Prior to joining the 
Company he functioned 
in the capacity of Vice 
President at Asia Siyaka 
Commodities (Pvt) Ltd.

Waruna De Silva
Executive Director

Mr. De Silva joined the 
company in November 2008, 
bringing over 12 years of 
experience and expertise 
in the brokering sector. He 
has also worked previously 
at Forbes & Walker Tea 
Brokers (Pvt) Ltd as a Tea 
Manager.
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Mr. Ranil Pathirana 
Director 

Mr. Pathirana is a Fellow of 
the Chartered Institute of 
Management Accountants, 
United Kingdom and 
holds a B.Com degree 
from the University of Sri 
Jayawardenapura. He has 
been the Group Finance 
Director of the Hirdaramani 
Group of Companies, since 
2000. Hirdaramani Group 
is a conglomerate with 
investments in Apparel, 
Manufacturing, Leisure and 
Power sectors. He currently 
serves as a Non-Executive 
Director on the Boards of 
Sampath Bank PLC, Hayleys 
MGT Knitting Mills PLC and 
Alumex PLC.

B.R.L. Fernando
Director

A Fellow of the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants 
of Sri Lanka. Currently 
functions as Non-Executive 
Chairman of Akzo Nobel 
Paints Lanka (Pvt) Limited, 
CIC Agri Businesses (Pvt) 
Limited, CIC Feeds (Pvt) 
Limited and Commercial 
Development Company PLC. 
Non-Executive Director 
of First Guardian Equities 
(Pvt) Limited, Link Natural 
Products (Pvt) Limited and 
the Postgraduate Institute 
of Management (PIM). 
Member of the Working 
Committee on the Science & 
Technology Policy Research 
of the National Science 
Foundation.

Sharmali Perera
Director

An Associate Member of 
the Chartered Institute of 
Management Accountants, 
United Kingdom. Mrs. 
Perera has been with 
Capital Alliance Limited 
since its inception in year 
2000, and has over 20 years 
experience in the financial 
services industry. She is 
the Head of Operations of 
the Capital Alliance Group 
and a director of Capital 
Alliance Securities (Pvt) 
Limited, Capital Alliance 
Investments Limited and the 
Lanka Swift User group.

Shiromal Cooray
Director

Ms. Cooray is the Managing 
Director of Jetwing Travels 
(Pvt) Limited - an inbound/ 
outbound travel agent in Sri 
Lanka and also a director of 
Jetwing Hotels (Pvt) Ltd, a 
hotel management company 
that owns and manages 
twelve hotels in Sri Lanka. 
She is also the past president 
of the Sri Lanka Association 
of Inbound Tour Operators 
(SLAITO) in Sri Lanka. 
Having completed her 
higher studies in the United 
Kingdom she embarked on a 
career in accountancy and 
is an Associate Member of 
the Chartered Institute of 
Management Accountants, 
United Kingdom. She also 
holds a Masters Degree 
in Business Management 
from the University of 
Colombo. Prior to joining 
the travel and tourism 
trade, she worked as the 
Finance Director of J Walter 
Thompson Ltd for 5 years 
and held a similar position 
at Mojo Hong Kong Ltd for 2 
years.

Board of Directors
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Management Team

(Standing left to right)

Suranga Perera 

Director / CEO

Waruna De Silva 

Executive Director

Saminda Deshapriya 

Manager Operations

Nalin Munasinghe 

Financial Controller

Thilina Nonis 

Senior Manager - Tea



Ceylon Tea Brokers PLC 15
Annual Report 2013/14

(Standing left to right)

Gihan Fernando 

Senior Manager - Tea

Upendra De Silva 

Manager - Tea

Tharake Nilaweera 
Asst. Manager - Tea

Suranga Silva 
Asst. Manager - Tea

Vibhuthi Jayakody 

Senior Executive - Tea
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Management Team Contd.

(Standing left to right)

Uditha Liyanage

Executive - Tea

Anjula De Silva

Executive - Tea

Wathmee Dodangoda

Junior Executive - Tea

Thilak Karunasena

Manager - Manufacturing Services

A C K Pathirana

Manufacturing Consultant
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(Standing left to right)

Sudath Ranasinghe

Manufacturing Consultant

Teshan Prashakthi

Junior Manufacturing Consultant

S J Thasan

Manager Warehousing

Jude Weerasekara

Manager Warehousing

Madawa Jayaratne

Manager Sample Room

Sudharman Perera

Manager Sample Room
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This statement describes the application 
of the Corporate Governance practices 
within the Company.

The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is responsible 
to the Company’s Shareholders to 
ensure at all times that the activities 
of the Company are conducted with the 
highest ethical standards and in the best 
interest of all stakeholders.

Composition of the Board and 
Independence

The Board of Ceylon Tea Brokers 
PLC comprises eight members, five of 
whom including the Chairman are Non 
Executive Directors.

The Board has determined that three 
Non-Executive Directors Messrs 
C P R Perera, B R L Fernando and 
R P Pathirana are ‘Independent’ as per 
the criteria set out in the Listing Rules 
of the Colombo Stock Exchange and the 
said Directors have submitted signed 
declarations in this regard.

Chairman and Managing Director

The roles of the Chairman and the 
Managing Director are separate with 
a clear distinction of responsibilities, 
which ensures balance of power and 
authority.

Board Meetings

The results of the Company are 
regularly considered and monitored 
against the budget at Board Meetings 
at which a standard agenda is discussed 
together with any other matters that 
require the attention of the Board.

The Board meets once in every three 
months and whenever necessary Special 
Meetings of the Board are held.

Board Sub Committees & Risk 
Management Committee

Certain responsibilities of the Board 
have been delegated to the following 
sub-committees.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee consists of three 
(3) Non-Executive Directors, as named 
below:

Ms. H M S Perera - Chairperson
Mr. C P R Perera
Mr. R P Pathirana

The Report of the Audit Committee 
appears on page 26.

Remuneration Committee
The committee comprises three (3) Non-
Executive Directors, as given below.

Mr. C P R Perera - Chairman
Ms. N T M S Cooray
Mr. B R L Fernando

The Remuneration Committee reviews 
the performance of the executive 
directors against the set objectives and 
recommends the remuneration payable 
to them. The Board makes the final 
determination after considering such 
recommendations. Remuneration Policy 
is formulated to attract and retain 
a highly qualified and experienced 
Senior Management team and motivate 
them to achieve set objectives and the 
remuneration packages are linked to the 
individual performances and are aligned 
with the Company’s business.

The aggregate remuneration paid to the 
Executive and Non-Executive Directors 
during the year under review appears on 
Page 21 under Directors’ Remuneration.

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee consists of

Mr. C P R Perera - Chairman
Mr. W A T Fernando
Mr. B R L Fernando

Corporate Governance
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Risk Management Committee
The Risk Management Committee 
consists of

Mr. C P R Perera - Chairman
Mr. B R L Fernando
Mr. W A T Fernando
Mr. M J C S Perera
Mr. D G W De Silva

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the 
Company’s internal control systems 
and its effectiveness in safeguarding 
the assets and providing accurate and 
timely information for decision making. 
This covers controls in respect of 
financial, operational and compliance 
related activities and risk management.

Going Concern

The Directors have reviewed the 
Company’s budgets, capital expenditure 
requirements and future cash flows 
and are satisfied that the Company 
has sufficient resources to continue in 
operation for the foreseeable future. 
Therefore, the Going Concern principle 
has been adopted in the preparation of 
the Financial Statements.

Code Of Business Conduct and 
Ethics

The Company has adopted a Code 
of Business Conduct and Ethics for 
Directors and Members of the Senior 
Management.

The Company has complied with the 
Colombo Stock Exchange Listing Rules 
and the best practices set out in the 
Code of Best Practice on Corporate 
Governance issued jointly by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Sri Lanka and the Securities and 
Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka.

By Order of the Board
CEYLON TEA BROKERS PLC

Neelika Subasinghe

P W Corporate Secretarial (Pvt) Ltd

Secretaries

26th June 2014
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The Board of Directors of Ceylon Tea 
Brokers PLC take pleasure in presenting 
their Annual Report together with the 
Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company for the year ended 31st March 
2014.

General

The Company was incorporated in 
terms of the Companies Act, No.17 
of 1982 under the name of “De Silva 
Abeywardena and Peiris (Private) 
Limited” on 15th June 1999, changed its 
name to Ceylon Tea Brokers (Private) 
Limited on 5th April 2006 and was 
converted to a public company on 21st 
June 2007. The Company which was 
re-registered as per the Companies Act, 
No.7 of 2007 on 20th January 2010 with 
PB 1280 as the new number assigned 
to the Company, obtained a listing on 
the Diri Savi Board of the Colombo 
Stock Exchange on 16th March 2010 and 
changed its name to Ceylon Tea Brokers 
PLC on 3rd May 2010. The registration 
number of the Company is PB 1280 PQ.

Principal activities of the Company 
and review of performance during 
the year

The Company’s principal activities 
which remained unchanged during the 
year were:

• acting as an intermediary between 
tea sellers and buyers

• providing warehousing for storage 
of tea

In addition to the aforesaid core 
activities, the Company receives 
interest on monies lent to tea sellers.

This Report together with the Financial 
Statements, reflect the state of affairs of 
the Company.

Financial Statements

The complete Financial Statements of 
the Company and duly signed by two 
Directors on behalf of the Board are 
included in this Annual Report and 
forms part and parcel hereof.

Auditors’ Report

The Report of the Auditors on the 
Financial Statements of the Company is 
attached with the Financial Statements.

Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the 
Company have been prepared in 
accordance with the revised Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards and Sri Lanka 
Financial Reporting Standards and the 
policies adopted thereof are given on 
page 32 to 41. Figures pertaining to the 
previous periods have been re-stated 
where necessary to conform to the 
presentation for the year under review.

Stated Capital

The Stated Capital of the Company is 
Rs. 128,000,000/- representing 114,000,000 
Ordinary Shares.

Major Shareholders, Distribution 
Schedule and other information

Information on the distribution of 
shareholding, analysis of shareholders, 
market values per share, earnings, 
dividends, net assets per share, twenty 
largest shareholders of the Company, 
Directors’ shareholding, percentage 
of shares held by the public as per the 
Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock 
Exchange are given on page 60 to 61 
under Shareholders’ Information.

Directors

The names of the Directors who held 
office as at the end of the accounting 
period are:

Mr. C P R Perera 
Chairman / Independent Non-Executive 
Director

Mr. W A T Fernando 
Managing Director

Mr. M J C S Perera  
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. D G W De Silva 
Executive Director

Mr. B R L Fernando 
Independent Non-Executive Director

Ms. N T M S Cooray 
Non Executive Director

Ms. H M S Perera 
Non Executive Director

Mr. R P Pathirana 
Independent Non-Executive Director

Annual Report of the Board of Directors 
on the Affairs of the Company
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Mr. B R L Fernando who is over 70 years 
of age, offers himself for re-appointment 
as a Director in pursuance of Section 
211 of the Companies Act with the 
recommendation of the Directors. 
A resolution proposing the re-
appointment of Mr. B R L Fernando 
who is 72 years of age, to the Board of 
the Company, declaring that the age 
limit of 70 years shall not apply to the 
said Director, will be placed before the 
shareholders at the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting.

A resolution for the re-appointment 
of Mr. C P R Perera, who reached the 
age of 70 years on  5th March 2014, will 
be proposed at the Annual General 
Meeting in terms of Section 211 of the 
Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 with the 
recommendation of the Directors. A 
resolution proposing the re-appointment 
of Mr. C P R Perera who is 70 years 
of age, to the Board of the Company, 
declaring that the age limit of 70 years 
shall not apply to the said Director, will 
be placed before the shareholders at the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Mr. R P Pathirana retires by rotation 
at the Annual General Meeting in 
terms of Article 87(i) of the Articles 
of Association and being eligible, is 
being recommended by the Board for 
re-election at the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting.

Interests Register

The Company maintains an Interests 
Register in terms of the Companies 
Act, No. 7 of 2007, which is deemed to 

form part and parcel of this Annual 
Report and available for inspection upon 
request.

All related party transactions which 
encompasses the transactions of 
Directors who were directly or indirectly 
interested in a contract or a related 
party transaction with the Company 
during the accounting period are 
recorded in the Interests Register in due 
compliance with the applicable rules and 
regulations of the relevant Regulatory 
Authorities.

Directors’ Shareholding

The relevant interests of Directors 
in the shares of the Company as at 
31st March 2014 as recorded in the 
Interests Register are given on page 60 
of the Annual Report under Directors’ 
shareholding.

Directors’ Remuneration

The aggregate remuneration paid to the 
Directors’ during the year under review 
was Rs. 16,532, 692.00

Auditors

Messrs KPMG, Chartered Accountants 
served as the Auditors of the Company. 
The Auditors do not have any interest in 
the Company other than providing Audit 
and Non Audit services.

A sum of Rs. 360,000.00 is payable by the 
Company to the Auditors as Audit Fees 
for the year under review.

The Auditors have also provided Non-
Audit services during the year and the 
fee payable there for amounts to Rs. 
152,900.00.

Donations

The Company did not make any 
donations during the period under 
review.

Dividends

The Directors have approved a first and 
final dividend of Twenty Five Cents 
(Rs.0.25) per share for the year under 
review subject to obtaining a Certificate 
of Solvency from the Auditors and the 
said dividend was paid on 18th July 2014.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of property, plant and equipment 
and changes during the year are given in 
Note 11 of the Financial Statements.

Land Holdings

The Company does not own any freehold 
land or buildings.

Material Foreseeable Risk Factors

The Board of Directors consider 
risk assessment and formulation of 
mitigating strategies to be vital to 
achieving the Company’s objectives.

The principal risk in achieving the 
Company’s objective of enhancing 
shareholder value and safeguarding the 
Company’s assets have been identified 
as set out below. It should be noted that 
other factors besides those listed may 
affect the performance of the business.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the possibility of 
non-repayment of client advances due to 
a fall in the market price of tea resulting 
in incurring bad debts.

The controls in place to mitigate such 
risk include assessment of client credit 
worthiness, setting credit limits and 
obtaining security where deemed 
necessary.

The Company risk is mitigated to a 
large extent by the Colombo Brokers 
Association’s Code of Ethics.

People Risk

People are one of the key success factors 
in the Tea Broking industry. And as 
such, the success or the failures would 
depend on CTB’s ability to retain staff. 
To minimize staff turnover, and to 
recruit competent staff, CTB believes 
in improving further on the current 
conducive work environment and offer 
performance based remuneration above 
industry practice.

There are no material issues pertaining 
to industry other than retaining staff.

Regulatory Risk

If CTB is unable to secure the license 
to act as a Broker, the Company will be 
unable to participate in the Colombo 
Auction resulting in the Company not 
being able to generate any income

Operational Risk

This is the risk or loss resulting from 
failed internal processes and external 
events.

The Company is exposed to several 
common operational risks that include 
natural perils, human error and loss of 
operational data.

The Company has established systems 
of control to minimize these risks 
through the engagement of high caliber 
professionals and appropriate insurance 
policies.

The Board has also established a Risk 
Management Committee in order to 
assess and manage the risks associated 
with the Company’s key business 
processes.

Corporate Governance

The Company has complied with 
the Corporate Governance Rules of 
the Colombo Stock Exchange. The 
Corporate Governance Statement on 
page 18 explains the practices within the 
Company in this respect.

Events Occurring After the 
Reporting Date

No circumstances have arisen and no 
material events have occurred during 
the period between the reporting date 
and the date of signing of Financial 
Statements by Directors, that require 

disclosure or adjustment to the financial 
statements other than those disclosed 
in Note 27 to the financial statements on 
page 58 of this Annual Report.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be 
held at 10.30 a.m. on Friday the 19th 
September 2014 at the Auditorium of the 
Ceylon Chamber of Commerce.

The notice of the Annual General 
Meeting appears on page 62.

This Annual Report is signed for and on 
behalf of the Board of Directors by

C P R Perera W A T Fernando
Chairman Managing Director

Neelika Subasinghe
P W Corporate Secretarial (Pvt) Ltd

Secretaries

26th June 2014
Colombo

Annual Report of the Board of Directors 
on the Affairs of the Company Contd.
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The Directors are required by the 
Companies Act, No.7 of 2007 to prepare 
financial statements for each financial 
year, which give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the Company as 
at the end of the financial year and the 
income and expenditure of the Company 
for the financial year.

The Directors are also responsible in 
ensuring that the financial statements 
comply with any regulation made under 
the Companies Act, which specifies the 
form and content of financial statements 
and any other requirements which apply 
to the Company’s Financial Statements 
under any other law. 

The Directors ensure that the Financial 
Statements presented in this Annual 
Report have been prepared using 
appropriate accounting policies, 
consistently applied and supported by 
reasonable and prudent judgments’ 
and estimates and in compliance with 
the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, 
Companies Act, No.7 of 2007 and the 
Sri Lanka Accounting and Auditing 
Standards Act No.15 of 1995. 

The Directors are responsible for 
ensuring that the Company keeps 
sufficient accounting records, which 
discloses the financial position of the 
Company with reasonable accuracy, 
which will enable them to have the 
financial statements prepared and 
presented as aforesaid. 

They are also responsible for taking 
measures to safeguard the assets of the 
Company and in that context to have 
proper regard to the establishment of 
appropriate systems of internal control 
with a view to prevention and detection 
of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are also confident that 
the Company has adequate resources to 
continue in operation and have applied 
the going concern basis in preparing the 
financial statements. 

By Order of the Board
CEYLON TEA BROKERS PLC

C P R Perera W A T Fernando

Chairman Managing Director

26th June 2014
Colombo

Statement on Directors’ Responsibilities 
for Preparation of Financial Statements 
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Report of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee appointed by and 
responsible to the Board of Directors 
comprises of the following three 
members as at balance sheet date;

Ms. H M S Perera 

Chairperson - Non Executive Director

Mr. C P R Perera 

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. R P Pathirana 

Independent Non- Executive Director

The Committee met five times during 
the year under review. By invitation 
of the Audit committee The Managing 
Director, two Executive Directors, 
Manager Finance and the Manager 
Operations also attend the Audit 
committee meetings.

The Audit Committee is empowered 
to monitor and review the entire 
financial process of the Company in an 
independent and objective manner to 
ensure reliability and quality of financial 
reporting to the shareholders and the 
public.

Financial Reporting

The Audit committee reviewed the 
Quarterly Financial Statements and the 
Annual Financial Statements for the 
Year ended 31st March 2014 focusing on 
the quality and accuracy of the financial 
statements.

The Audit committee also reviewed 
the preparation of the Annual report 
to ensure compliance with Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards and Accounting 
Policies and Practices. 

Internal Audit

The Internal Auditors Messes 
Jayasinghe & Co along with the Audit 
committee discussed the scope of the 
Audit for the year.

The Committee reviewed the Internal 
Audit Report extensively along with the 
Managing Director, the two Executive 
Directors and the Manager Finance and 
the Manager Operations.

The committee followed up on 
recommendations of the Internal Audit 
Committee. Effectiveness of Internal 
controls to ensure reliability of data 
and the reporting system was discussed 
and reviewed along with the Internal 
Auditors.

External Auditors

The Audit committee having evaluated 
the performance of the external 
Auditors, has recommended to the 
Board of Directors that Messrs. KPMG, 
Chartered Accountants of No: 32A Sir 
Mohamed Macan Mawatha Colombo 2 be 
re-appointed the external Auditors for 
the year ended 31st March 2015 subject 

to the approval of the shareholders 
at the Annual General Meeting. The 
fees payable to the Auditors were 
also reviewed by the committee, and 
submitted to the Board of Directors for 
approval.

H M S Perera

Chairperson - Audit Committee

26th June 2014



27Ceylon Tea Brokers PLC
Annual Report 2013/14

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF 
CEYLON TEA BROKERS PLC

Report on the Financial 
Statements

We have audited the accompanying 
Financial Statements of Ceylon Tea 
Brokers PLC, which comprise the 
Statement of Financial Position as 
at 31st March 2014, and Statement of 
Comprehensive Income, Statement of 
Changes in Equity and Statement of 
Cash Flow for the year then ended, and 
a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for 
the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the 
preparation and fair presentation 
of these Financial Statements in 
accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards. This responsibility 
includes: designing, implementing and 
maintaining internal control relevant to 
the preparation and fair presentation of 
Financial Statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error; selecting and applying 
appropriate accounting policies; and 
making accounting estimates that are 
reasonable in the circumstances.

Independent Auditors’ Report

Scope of Audit and Basis of 
Opinion
Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these Financial Statements 
based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with Sri Lanka 
Auditing Standards. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
whether the Financial Statements are 
free from material misstatement. 

An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the Financial 
Statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting policies used 
and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating 
the overall Financial Statement 
presentation.

We have obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best of 
our knowledge and belief were necessary 
for the purposes of our audit. We 
therefore believe that our audit provides 
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, so far as appears 
from our examination, the Company 
maintained proper accounting records 
for the year ended 31st March 2014 
and the Financial Statements give a 
true and fair view of the Company’s 
financial position as at 31st March 2014 
and its financial performance and its 
Cash Flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards.

Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements

These Financial Statements also comply 
with the requirement of Section 151(2) of 
the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007. 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

26th June 2014
Colombo.
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Statement of Comprehensive 
Income
For the year ended 31st March  2014 2013 

 Note Rs. Rs.

Revenue 5 259,199,347 203,822,532
Operating Expenses  (56,633,407) (49,300,712)
Gross Profit  202,565,940 154,521,820
Marketing Expenses  (67,951,146) (36,771,324)
Administration Expenses  (136,837,764) (106,948,966)
Profit/(Loss) from Operations  (2,222,969) 10,801,530
Net Finance Income 6 79,457,159 42,832,347
Other Income  - 2,800,365
Profit Before Taxation 7 77,234,190 56,434,242
Income Tax Expense 8 (21,034,000) (16,656,816)
Profit for the Year  56,200,189 39,777,426

Other Comprehensive Income

Defined Benefit Plan Actuarial Losses  (372,639) (74,820)
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year  (372,639) (74,820)

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year  55,827,550 39,702,606

Earnings Per Share 9 0.49 0.35

Dividend Per Share 10 0.17 0.25

The Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements set out from page 32 to 59 form an integral part of these Financial 
Statements.

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 31st March   2014 2013 
 Note Rs. Rs.

ASSETS
Non Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 11 20,024,575 17,457,768
Intangible Assets 12 1,651,800 1,626,877
Loans to Tea Suppliers 13.1 97,632,963 123,648,586
Total Non Current Assets  119,309,338 142,733,231

Current Assets
Trade and Other Receivables 14 1,091,021,843 816,253,857
Loans to Tea Suppliers 13.2 39,333,943 46,799,776
Cash and Cash Equivalents 15 169,636,474 33,204,370
Total Current Assets  1,299,992,260 896,258,003

Total Assets  1,419,301,598 1,038,991,234

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Stated Capital 17 128,000,000 128,000,000
Retained Profits  58,238,331 21,790,781
Share Based Payment  69,534 -
Total Equity  186,307,865 149,790,781

Non Current Liabilities
Deferred Tax Liability 16 961,732 348,798
Loan Payable to Capital Alliance Finance PLC 19 4,940,082 -
Retirement Benefit Obligations 20 10,086,081 8,260,757
Total Non Current Liabilities  15,987,895 8,609,555

Current Liabilities
Interest Bearing Borrowings 18.1 494,066,334 133,989,105
Loan Payable to Capital Alliance Finance PLC 19 1,118,614 -
Trade and Other Payables 21 205,542,049 118,829,057
Amount Due to Parent Company 22 - 71,712,442
Tax Payables  13,717,200 7,560,332
Bank Overdrafts 16 502,561,641 548,499,962
Total Current Liabilities  1,217,005,838 880,590,898

Total Equity And Liabilities  1,419,301,598 1,038,991,234

The Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements set out from page 32 to 59 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

I certify that these Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

M.N.C. Munasinghe
Financial Controller

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements.

Approved and Signed for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Ceylon Tea Brokers PLC.

C.P.R. Perera W.A.T. Fernando
Chairman Managing Director

26th June 2014
Colombo
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Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31st March 2014
 Stated Retained Share Based Total 

 Capital Profits Payment  

 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance as at 1st April 2012 128,000,000 10,588,175 - 138,588,175

Total Comprehensive Income

Profit for the Year - 39,777,426 - 39,777,426

Total Other Comprehensive Income

Other Comprehensive Income - (74,820) - (74,820)

Transactions with Owners

Dividend Paid - (28,500,000) - (28,500,000)

Balance as at 31st March 2013 128,000,000 21,790,781 - 149,790,781

Total Comprehensive Income

Profit for the Year - 56,200,189 - 56,200,189

Total Other Comprehensive Income

Other Comprehensive Income - (372,639) - (372,639)

Transactions with Owners

Dividend Paid - (19,380,000) - (19,380,000)

Share Based Payment Transaction - - 69,534 69,534

Balance as at 31st March 2014 128,000,000 58,238,331 69,534 186,307,865

The Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements set out from page 32 to 59 form an integral part of these Financial 
Statements.

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31st March  2014 2013 
 Note Rs. Rs.

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Profit Before Taxation  77,234,190 56,434,242

Adjustment for;
Depreciation/Amortisation  6,146,129 5,778,578
Interest Income  (207,579,226) (164,492,254)
Interest Expense  128,122,066 121,659,907
Specific Provision for Impairment  37,593,631 10,922,857
Disposal (Profit) / Loss on Property, Plant and Equipment Disposals  - (1,069,408)
Provision for Retirement Benefit Obligations  2,468,310 2,409,198
Share Based Payment  69,534 -
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes  44,054,635 31,643,120

(Increase)/Decrease in Loans to Tea Suppliers  (4,112,175) (53,176,841)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables  (274,767,986) (154,866,279)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Payables  86,712,994 16,134,672
Cash Generated from/(Used in) Operations  (148,112,532) (160,265,328)

Retirement Benefit Obligations Paid  (1,015,625) (961,275)
Income Tax Paid  (14,264,201) (9,354,154)
Net Cash Flow from/(Used in) Operating Activities  (163,392,358) (170,580,757)

Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Interest Received  207,579,226 164,492,254
Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment  (8,068,519) (6,606,769)
Acquisition of Intangible Assets  (669,338) (866,165)
Proceeds on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment  - 2,459,821
Net Cash Flow from/(Used in) Investing Activities  198,841,368 159,479,141

Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Interest Paid  (117,112,986) (96,336,312)
Loans Obtained During the Year  26,400,000 -
Loan Repayment made during the year  (15,341,292) (5,000,004)
Proceeds from Commercial Papers issued  479,584,717 128,989,117
Repayment of Commercial Papers redeemed  (128,989,117) (150,000,000)
Advance Obtained from Parent Company  30,000,000 180,000,000
Settlements made to Parent Company  (108,239,907) (235,000,000)
Repayment of Debentures (Redeemed)/ Issued  - (50,000,000)
Dividend Paid  (19,380,000) (28,500,000)
Net Cash Flow from/(Used in) Financing Activities  146,921,415 (255,847,199)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents  182,370,425 (266,948,814)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the Year  (515,295,592) (248,346,778)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Year 15 (332,925,167) (515,295,592)

The Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements set out from page 32 to 59 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Reporting Entity

Ceylon Tea Brokers PLC (“Company”) 
is a Company domiciled and operating 
in Sri Lanka and listed on the Colombo 
Stock Exchange. The Company’s 
registered office and the principal 
place of business are located at No. 43, 
Jawatte Road, Colombo 05.

During the year, the principal activities 
of the Company were Tea Brokering, 
Warehousing and Financing.

The Company’s parent undertaking is 
Capital Alliance Holdings Limited.

2. Basis of preparation

2.1 Statement of compliance
The Financial Statements of the 
Company comprise the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income, Statement 
of Financial Position, Statement of 
Changes in Equity and Statement 
of Cash Flows, together with the 
Accounting Policies and Notes to the 
Financial Statements.

The Financial Statements have been 
prepared in accordance with the Sri 
Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRS &  
LKAS) promulgated by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (CA 
Sri Lanka) and with the requirement of 
the Companies Act No 7 of 2007.

The Financial Statements were 
authorized for issue by the Board 

of Directors in accordance with the 
resolution passed by the Board of 
Directors on 26th June 2014.

2.2 Basis of measurement
The Financial Statements have been 
prepared on the historical cost basis 
except for the following material items 
in the statement of financial position.

• Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities that have been measured 
at fair value

• Employee benefit liability 
recognized based on Acturial 
Valuation (LKAS 19)

• Liabilities for share based payment 
arrangement are measured at fair 
value

The Directors have made an assessment 
of the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern in the foreseeable 
future and they do not foresee a need for 
liquidation or cessation of business.

2.3 Functional and presentation 
currency

These financial statements are 
presented in Sri Lankan Rupees (Rs.), 
which is the Company’s functional 
currency.

2.4 Use of estimates and 
judgments
The preparation of Financial 
Statements in conformity with Sri 
Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRSs) 
requires the management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions 
that effect the application of policies 
and reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on historical 
experience and various other factors 
that are believed to be reasonable under 
the circumstance, the results of which 
form the basis of making the judgments 
about carrying values of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent 
from the other sources.

The estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognized in the period in which 
the estimates are revised if the revision 
affects only that financial year or in the 
period of the revision and future periods 
if the revision affects both current and 
future financial years.

3. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below 
have been applied consistently to all 
periods presented in these Financial 
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Statements unless otherwise stated.
Comparative information has where 
necessary been reclassified to confirm 
the current year’s presentation.

3.1 Foreign Currency
3.1.1 Foreign currency 
transactions
All foreign exchange transactions are 
converted to functional currency, at the 
rates of exchange prevailing at the time 
the transactions are effected.

Monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currency are 
retranslated to functional currency 
equivalents at the spot exchange rate 
prevailing at the reporting date.

Non-monetary items that are measured 
in terms of historical cost in a foreign 
currency are translated using the 
exchange rates as at the dates of the 
initial transactions. Non-monetary 
assets and liabilities are translated 
using exchange rates that existed when 
the values were determined. The gain 
or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items is recognised in line 
with the gain or loss of the item that 
gave rise to the translation difference.

3.2 Assets and bases of their 
valuation
Assets classified as current assets in the 
Statement of Financial Position are cash 
and bank balances and those, which are 

expected to be realized in cash during 
the normal operating cycle, or within 
one year from the Balance Sheet date, 
whichever is shorter. Assets other than 
current assets are those, which the 
Company intends to hold beyond the 
one year period calculated from the 
reporting date.

3.2.1 Property, plant and 
equipment
3.2.1.1 Recognition and measurement

Property, Plant and Equipment are 
stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses.

3.2.1.2 Owned Assets

The cost of an item of property, plant 
and equipment comprise its purchase 
price and any directly attributable 
costs of bringing the asset to working 
condition for its intended use. The cost 
of self-constructed assets includes 
the cost of materials, direct labor, and 
any other costs directly attributable 
to bringing the asset to the working 
condition for its intended use. This 
also includes cost of dismantling and 
removing the items and restoring in 
the site on which they are located and 
borrowing costs on qualifying assets.

Purchased software that is integrate 
to the functionality of the related 
equipment is capitalized as part of 
equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant 
and equipment have different useful 
lives, they are accounted for as separate 
items (major component) of property, 
plant and equipment.

3.2.1.3 Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item 
of property, plant and equipment is 
recognized in the carrying amount of 
the item if it is probable that the future 
economic benefits embodied within 
the part will flow to the company and 
its cost can be measured reliably. The 
carrying amount of the replaced part is 
derecognized.

The costs of the day to day servicing 
of property, plant and equipment are 
recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

3.2.1.4 Derecognition

The carrying amount of an item of 
property, plant and equipment is de-
recognized on disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its 
use or disposal. Gains or losses on de-
recognition are recognized within other 
income in profit or loss. 

3.2.1.5 Depreciation

Depreciation is recognized in profit or 
loss on the straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of each part of 
item of Property, Plant and Equipment. 
Depreciation of an asset begins when it 
is available for use whereas depreciation 
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of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held for sale 
(or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale) and the date that the 
asset is derecognized. Depreciation is not charged on Freehold Land.
The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Annual Rate Useful Life

Computer 25.00% (04 years)

Furniture and Fittings 12.50% (08 years)

Motor Vehicle 25.00%  (04 years)

Computer Equipment 12.50% (08 years)

Weight Scale 12.50% (08 years)

All financial assets are recognized 
initially at fair value plus, in the case of 
assets not at fair value through profit or 
loss, directly attributable transaction 
costs.

Purchase or sale of financial assets 
that require delivery of assets within a 
time frame established by regulation or 
convention in the marketplace (regular 
way trades) are recognized on the trade 
date, i.e., the date that the Company 
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

The Company financial assets include 
cash and cash equivalent, short term 
deposits, Loans and advances given 
to tea suppliers, trade and other 
receivables.

3.2.3.2 Subsequent Measurement

The subsequent measurement of 
financial assets depends on their 
classification as described below:

3.2.3.3 Financial Assets at Fair Value 

through Profit or Loss

Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss include financial assets 
held for trading and financial assets 
designated upon initial recognition 
at fair value through profit or loss. 
Financial assets are classified as held 
for trading if they are acquired for the 
purpose of selling or repurchasing in 
the near term. This category includes 
derivative financial instruments 
entered into by the Group that are not 

Depreciation method, useful lives and 
residual values are reviewed at each 
financial year end and adjusted if 
appropriate.

3.2.2 Intangible Assets
An intangible asset is recognized if it 
is probable that economic benefits are 
attributable to the assets will flow to 
the entity and cost of the assets can be 
measured reliably and carried at cost 
less accumulated amortization and 
accumulated impairment losses.

3.2.2.1 Computer Software

All computer software cost incurred, 
which are not internally related to 
associate hardware, which can be 
clearly identified, reliably measured and 
its probable that they will lead to future 
economic benefits, are included in the 
Statement of Financial Position under 
the category of intangible assets.

3.2.2.2 Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised 
only when it increases the future 
economic benefits embodied in the 
specific asset to which it relates. All 
other expenditure is recognized in profit 
or loss as incurred.

3.2.3 Financial Assets
3.2.3.1 Initial Recognition and 

Measurement

Financial assets within the scope of 
LKAS 39 are classified as financial 
assets at fair value through profit or 
loss, loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments, available-for-
sale financial assets, or as derivatives 
designated as hedging instruments in 
an effective hedge, as appropriate. The 
Company determines the classification 
of its financial assets at initial 
recognition.

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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designated as hedging instruments 
in hedge relationships as defined 
by LKAS 39. Derivatives, including 
separated embedded derivatives are 
also classified as held for trading unless 
they are designated as effective hedging 
instruments. Financial assets at fair 
value through profit and loss are carried 
in the Statement of Financial Position 
at fair value with changes in fair value 
recognized in finance income or finance 
costs in the income statement.

The Company evaluated its financial 
assets at fair value through profit and 
loss (held for trading) whether the 
intent to sell them in the near term is 
still appropriate. When the Company 
is unable to trade these financial 
assets due to inactive markets and 
the management’s intent to sell them 
in the foreseeable future significantly 
changes, the Company may elect to 
reclassify these financial assets in rare 
circumstances. The reclassification to 
loans and receivables, available-for-
sale or held to maturity depends on the 
nature of the asset.

3.2.3.4 Loans and Receivables

Loans and Receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed 
or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market. After initial 
measurement, such financial assets are 
subsequently measured at amortized 
cost using the effective interest 

rate method (EIR), less impairment. 
Amortized cost is calculated by taking 
into account any discount or premium 
on acquisition and fees or costs that 
are an integral part of the EIR. The 
EIR amortization is included in finance 
income in the income statement.

3.2.3.5 Held-to-Maturity Investments

Non-derivative financial assets with 
fixed or determinable payments and 
fixed maturities are classified as 
held-to-maturity when the Company 
has the positive intention and ability 
to hold them to maturity. After initial 
measurement, held-to-maturity 
investments are measured at amortized 
cost using the effective interest method, 
less impairment. Amortized cost is 
calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition 
and fees or costs that are an integral 
part of the EIR. The EIR amortization 
is included in finance income in the 
income statement. The losses arising 
from impairment are recognized in the 
income statement in finance costs.
The Company has not designated any 
financial assets upon initial recognition 
as Held-to Maturity Investments.

3.2.3.6 Available-for-Sale Financial 

Investments

Available-for-sale financial assets 
are non-derivative financial assets 
that are designated as available 
for sale or are not classified in any 

of the above categories of financial 
assets. Available-for-sale financial 
assets are recognized initially at fair 
value plus any directly attributable 
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, they are measured at fair 
value and changes therein, other than 
impairment losses and foreign currency 
differences on available-for-sale debt 
instruments, are recognized in other 
comprehensive income and presented in 
the fair value reserve in equity. When 
an investment is derecognized, the 
gain or loss accumulated in equity is 
reclassified to profit or loss. Available-
for-sale financial assets comprise equity 
securities and debt securities.

3.2.3.7 Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable 
a part of a financial asset or part of a 
Company of similar financial assets) is 
derecognized when:

•	 The rights to receive cash flows 
from the asset have expired,

•	 The Company has transferred 
its rights to receive cash flows 
from the asset or has assumed an 
obligation to pay the received cash 
flows in full without material delay 
to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; and either 
(a) the Company has transferred 
substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset, or (b) the 
Company has neither transferred 
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nor retained substantially all the 
risks and rewards of the asset, but 
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred 
its rights to receive cash flows from 
an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, and has neither 
transferred nor retained substantially 
all of the risks and rewards of the 
asset nor transferred control of it, the 
asset is recognized to the extent of the 
Company’s continuing involvement in it.

In that case, the Company also 
recognizes an associated liability. The 
transferred asset and the associated 
liability are measured on a basis that 
reflects the rights and obligations that 
the Company has retained.

3.2.3.8 Impairment of Financial 

Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting 
date whether there is any objective 
evidence that a financial asset or a 
group of financial assets is impaired. A 
financial asset or a Company of financial 
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and 
only if, there is objective evidence of 
impairment as a result of one or more 
events that has occurred after the initial 
recognition of the asset (an incurred 
‘loss event’) and that loss event has 
an impact on the estimated future 
cash flows of the financial asset or the 
Company of financial assets that can be 
reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include 
indications that the debtors or a 
Company of debtors is experiencing 
significant financial difficulty, default 
or delinquency in interest or principal 
payments, the probability that they 
will enter bankruptcy or other financial 
reorganization and where observable 
data indicate that there is a measurable 
decrease in the estimated future cash 
flows, such as changes in arrears or 
economic conditions that correlate with 
defaults.

3.2.3.9 Financial Assets Carried at 

Amortised Cost

For financial assets carried at 
amortized cost, the Company first 
assesses whether objective evidence 
of impairment exists individually for 
financial assets that are individually 
significant, or collectively for financial 
assets that are not individually 
significant. If the Company determines 
that no objective evidence of impairment 
exists for an individually assessed 
financial asset, whether significant or 
not, it includes the asset in a Company of 
financial assets with similar credit risk 
characteristics and collectively assesses 
them for impairment. Assets that are 
individually assessed for impairment 
and for which an impairment loss is, 
or continues to be, recognized are not 
included in a collective assessment of 
impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an 
impairment loss has been incurred, the 
amount of the loss is measured as the 
difference between the assets carrying 
amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows (excluding 
future expected credit losses that have 
not yet been incurred). The present 
value of the estimated future cash flows 
is discounted at the financial asset’s 
original effective interest rate. If a loan 
has a variable interest rate, the discount 
rate for measuring any impairment loss 
is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is 
reduced through the use of an allowance 
account and the amount of the loss is 
recognized in the profit or loss. Interest 
income continues to be accrued on 
the reduced carrying amount and is 
accrued using the rate of interest used 
to discount the future cash flows for the 
purpose of measuring the impairment 
loss. The interest income is recorded 
as part of finance income in the income 
statement. Loans together with the 
associated allowance are written off 
when there is no realistic prospect of 
future recovery and all collateral has 
been realized. If, in a subsequent year, 
the amount of the estimated impairment 
loss increases or decreases because of 
an event occurring after the impairment 
was recognized, the previously 
recognized impairment loss is increased 
or reduced by adjusting the allowance 

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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account. If a future write-off is later 
recovered, the recovery is credited to 
finance costs in the profit or loss.

3.2.4 Financial Liabilities
3.2.4.1 Initial Recognition and 

Measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope 
of LKAS 39 are classified as financial 
liabilities at fair value through profit 
or loss, loans and borrowings, or as 
derivatives designated as hedging 
instruments in an effective hedge, as 
appropriate. The Company determines 
the classification of its financial 
liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognized 
initially at fair value and, in the case 
of loans and borrowings, carried at 
amortized cost. This includes directly 
attributable transaction costs.

The Company financial liabilities 
include trade and other payables, bank 
overdrafts and borrowings.

3.2.4.2 Subsequent Measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities 
depends on their classification as 
follows:

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value 

through Profit or Loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss include financial liabilities 

held-for-trading and financial liabilities 
designated upon initial recognition as at 
fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as 
held-for-trading if they are acquired 
for the purpose of selling in the near 
term. This category includes derivative 
financial instruments entered into by 
the Company that are not designated 
as hedging instruments in hedge 
relationships as defined by LKAS 39. 
Separated embedded derivatives are 
also classified as held-for-trading unless 
they are designated as effective hedging 
instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held-for-
trading are recognized in the profit or 
loss.

The Company has not designated 
any financial liabilities upon initial 
recognition as at fair value through 
profit or loss.

Loans and Borrowings

After initial recognition, interest 
bearing loans and borrowings are 
subsequently measured at amortized 
cost using the effective interest rate 
method. Gains and losses are recognized 
in the income statement when the 
liabilities are derecognized as well 
as through the effective interest rate 
method (EIR) amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking 
into account any discount or premium 
on acquisition and fees or costs that 
is an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 
amortization is included in finance costs 
in the income statement.

3.2.4.3 Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized 
when the obligation under the liability 
is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an existing financial liability 
is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, 
or the terms of an existing liability 
are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as 
a derecognition of the original liability 
and the recognition of a new liability, 
and the difference in the respective 
carrying amounts are recognized in the 
income statement.

3.2.5 Offsetting of Financial 
Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities 
are offset with the net amount reported 
in the Statement of Financial Position 
only if there is a current enforceable 
legal right to offset the recognized 
amounts and intent to settle on a net 
basis, or to realize the assets and settle 
the liabilities simultaneously.

Income and expense will not be offset in 
the Income Statement unless required or 
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permitted by any accounting standard or 
interpretation, as specifically disclosed 
in the accounting policies of the 
Company.

3.2.6 Fair Value of Financial 
Instruments
The fair value of financial instruments 
that are traded in active markets at 
each reporting date is determined by 
reference to quoted market prices or 
dealer price quotations (bid price for 
long positions and ask price for short 
positions), without any deduction for 
transaction costs.

For financial instruments not traded 
in an active market, the fair value is 
determined using appropriate valuation 
techniques. Such techniques may 
include:

•	 Using recent arm’s length market 
transactions;

•	 Reference to the current fair value 
of another instrument that is 
substantially the same;

•	 A discounted cash flow analysis or 
other valuation models.

An analysis of fair values of financial 
instruments and further details as to 
how they are measured are provided in 
Note 23.

3.2.7. Provision, Contingent 
Liabilities, Contingent Assets
Provisions are recognized when the 
Company has a present obligation 
(legal or constructive) as a result of a 
past event, where it is probable that 
an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of 
the obligation.

All contingent liabilities are disclosed as 
a note to the financial statements unless 
the outflow of resources is remote.

Contingent assets are disclosed, where 
inflow of economic benefit is probable.

3.2.8 Post Employment Benefits
i. Defined benefit plans

 The liability recognized in the 
Statement of Financial Position 
is the present value of the defined 
benefit obligation at the reporting 
date, with the advice of an actuary, 
using the projected unit credit (PUC) 
method.

ii. Defined contributions plans - 

Employees’ Provident Fund and 

Employees’ Trust Fund

 All employees who are eligible 
for Employees’ Provident Fund 
Contributions and Employees’ Trust 
Fund Contributions are covered 

by relevant contributions funds 
in line with the relevant statutes. 
Employer’s contributions to the 
defined contribution plans are 
recognized as an expense in profit or 
loss when incurred.

iii. Share-based payment transactions

 The grant date fair value of share-
based payment awards granted 
to employess is recognized as 
an employee expense, with a 
corresponding increase in equity, 
over the period that the employees 
unconditionally become entitled to 
the awards. The amount recognized 
as an expense is adjusted to reflect 
the number of awards for which 
the related service and non-market 
vesting conditions are expected 
to be met, such that the amount 
ultimately recognized as an expense 
is based on the number of awards 
that do meet the related service 
and non-market performance 
conditions at the vesting date. For 
share-based payment awards with 
non-vesting conditions, the grant 
date fair value of the share-based 
payment is measured to reflect such 
conditions and there is no true-up 
for differences between expected 
and actual outcomes.

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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3.3 Income Statement
3.3.1 Revenue
Revenue represents the amounts derived 
from the provision of services, which 
falls within the Company’s ordinary 
activities net of Revenue related taxes.

3.3.1.1 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent 
that it is probable that the economic 
benefits will flow to the Company and 
the revenue can be reliably measured.

3.3.1.2 Revenue

•	 Brokerage Income

 Brokerage income is recognized on 
an accrual basis.

•	 Other Service Income

 Other Service income is recognised 
on an accrual basis.

3.3.2 Net Financing Income / Cost
Finance income comprises interest 
income on funds invested. Interest 
income is recognized as it accrues in 
profit or loss, using the effective interest 
method.

Finance cost comprises interest expense 
on borrowings.

3.3.3 Expenditure Recognition
a) All expenditure incurred in the 

running of the business and in 
maintaining the Property, Plant & 
Equipment in a state of efficiency 
has been charged to revenue in 
arriving at the profit for the year.

b) For the purpose of presentation of 
Income Statement the Directors 
are of the opinion that the function 
of expenses, present fairly the 
elements of the enterprises 
performance, hence such 
presentation method is adopted.

3.3.4 Tax
Tax expense comprises current and 
deferred tax. Current tax and deferred 
tax is recognized in profit or loss 
except to the extent that it relates 
to a business combination, or items 
recognized directly in equity or in other 
comprehensive income.

i. Current Tax
Current Income tax liabilities for the 
current and prior periods are measured 
at the amount expected to be recovered 
from or paid to the Commissioner 
General of Inland Revenue. The tax 
rates and tax laws used to compute the 
amount are those that are enacted or 
substantively enacted by the reporting 
date.

The relevant details are disclosed in 
the respective notes to the Financial 
Statements.

ii. Deferred Tax
Deferred taxation is provided, using 
the liability method, on all temporary 
differences at the reporting date 
between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts for 
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for 
all deductible temporary differences, 
carry forward of unused tax losses and 
unused tax credits to the extent that it 
is probable that future taxable profits 
will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences and 
carry forward of unused tax losses / 
credits can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax 
assets is reviewed at each reporting 
date and reduced to the extent that it is 
no longer probable that the related tax 
benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
measured at the tax rates that are 
expected to apply to the year when 
the asset is realized or the liability 
is settled, based on tax rates (and 
tax laws) that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted as at the 
reporting date.
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax 
liabilities are offset if legally enforceable 
right exists to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and when 
the deferred taxes relate to the same 
taxable entity and the same taxation 
authority.

3.4 Related Party Transactions
Disclosure has been made in respect 
of the transactions in which one party 
has the ability to control or exercise 
significant influence over the financial 
and operating policies/decisions of the 
other, irrespective of whether a price is 
being charged or not.

The relevant details are disclosed in 
the respective notes to the Financial 
Statements.

3.5 Cash Flow Statements
Interest received is classified as 
investing cash flows, while interest paid, 
is classified as financing cash flows for 
the purpose of presentation of Cash Flow 
Statement which has been prepared 
using the ‘Indirect Method’.

3.6 Earnings Per Share
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the 
profit or loss attributable to ordinary 
shareholders of the Company by the 
weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the period.

3.7 Events Occurring After the 
Reporting Date
Events after the reporting period are 
those events favorable and unfavorable, 
that occur between the end of the 
reporting period and the date when the 
financial statements are authorized for 
issue.

The materiality of the events occurring 
after the reporting period is considered 
and appropriate adjustments to or 
disclosures are made in the Financial 
Statements, where necessary.

4. New Accounting Standards 
issued but not yet adopted

Standard issued but not yet effective up 
to the date of issuance of the Company’s 
financial statements are listed below. 
This listing is of standards issued, which 
the Company reasonably expects to be 
applicable at a future date. The Company 
intends to adopt those standards when 
they become effective.

a) SLFRS 9 - Financial 
Instruments
SLFRS 9 as issued reflects the 
replacement of LKAS 39 and applies 
to the classification and measurement 
of financial assets and financial 
liabilities as defined in LKAS 39. This 
standard becomes effective for annual 

periods beginning on or after January 
01, 2015. The adoption of SLFRS 9 will 
have an impact on classification and 
measurement of Company’s financial 
assets.

b) SLFRS 10 - Consolidated 
Financial Statements
SLFRS 10 replaces the portion of LKAS 
27 Consolidated and Separate Financial 
Statements that address the accounting 
for Consolidated Financial Statements. 
SLFRS 10 establishes a single control 
model that applies to all entities 
including special purposes entities. 
The changes introduced by SLFRS 10 
will require management to exercise 
significant judgment to determine which 
entitles are controlled and therefore 
are required to be consolidated by the 
parent. This standard becomes effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after 
January 01, 2014.

c) SLFRS 11 - Joint Agreements
SLFRS 11 replaces LKAS 31 Interest in 
Joint Ventures and removes the option 
to account jointly control entities using 
proportionate consolidation. Under the 
new standards joint ventures must be 
accounted for using the equity method. 
This standard becomes effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 
January 01, 2014.

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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d) SLFRS 12 - Discloser of 
interest in other entities
SLFRS 12 includes all of the disclosures 
that were previously in LKAS 27 related 
to consolidated financial statements, 
as well as all of the disclosures that 
were previously included in LKAS 31 and 
LKAS 28. A number of new disclosures 
are also required. This standard 
becomes effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after January 01, 2014.

e) SLFRS 13 - Fair Value 
Measurement
SLFRS 13 establishes a single source 
of guidance under SLFRS for all fair 
value measurements. SLFRS 13 does not 
state when an entity is required use fair 
value, but provides guidance on how to 
measure fair value under SLFRS when 
fair value is required or permitted. This 
standard becomes effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after January 
01, 2014.
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For the year ended 31st March  2014 2013 

  Rs. Rs.

5. REVENUE

Brokerage  161,312,816 124,434,616
Storage  63,407,238 51,576,675
Lot Fee  4,444,215 3,678,928
Sundry Income  30,035,079 24,132,313
  259,199,347 203,822,532

6. NET FINANCE INCOME

Finance Income (Note 6.1)  207,579,226 164,492,254
Finance Expenses (Note 6.2)  (128,122,066) (121,659,907)
  79,457,159 42,832,347

6.1 Finance Income
Interest Earned on Loans and Advances  205,808,887 163,850,731
Interest Income on Staff Loans  818,305 278,925
Interest Income on Others  349,356 362,598
Interest on Fixed Deposit  602,677 -
  207,579,226 164,492,254

6.2 Finance Expenses
Financial VAT  1,288,590 2,412,702
Interest on Bank Loans  471,288 1,256,996
Interest on Bank Overdrafts  93,460,800 69,988,580
Interest on Amount due to Parent Company  6,527,464 25,323,595
Interest on Commercial Papers  25,139,614 18,410,068
Interest on Debentures  - 3,989,041
Un-winding of Prepaid Staff Loan Expenses  828,430 278,925
Interest on Related Party Loan  405,880 -
  128,122,066 121,659,907

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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For the year ended 31st March  2014 2013 

  Rs. Rs.

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Is stated after charging all expenses including the following;

Auditors’ Remuneration - Statutory Audit  360,000 315,000
              - Non Audit Services  152,900 50,000
Directors’ Fees  1,290,000 820,000
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment  5,501,714 5,306,672
Amortisation of Intangible Assets  644,415 471,906
Impairment of Receivables and Advances - Specific  37,593,631 10,922,857
Personnel Costs (Note 7.1)  93,894,475 68,273,177

7.1 Personnel Costs
Salaries, Wages and Overtime  71,566,864 55,394,640
Bonus Expenses  11,039,956 4,216,461
Defined Contribution Plan Costs - EPF  6,999,849 5,002,302
 - ETF  1,749,962 1,250,576
Retirement Benefit Obligation Expenses  2,468,310 2,409,198
Fair value of Employee Share Option Scheme  69,534 -
  93,894,475 68,273,177

Number of Employees  82 75

8. TAXATION

Current Income Tax Expense (Note 8.1)  20,421,066 15,149,748
Under Provision  - (151,637)
Provision on Deferred Taxation (Note 16)  612,934 1,658,705
  21,034,000 16,656,816

The provision for income tax is based on the elements of income and expenditure as reported in the Financial Statements and 
computed in accordance with the provision of the Inland Revenue Act No.10 of 2006 and subsequent amendments thereto. In terms 
of the Fifth schedule (section 43) of the Inland Revenue Act No.10 of 2006 newly introduced by the Inland Revenue (Amendment) Act 
No.22 of 2011, the Company is liable for income tax at the concessionary rate of 10% on its storage income, and 28% on other revenue 
sources and other income.



44 Ceylon Tea Brokers PLC
Annual Report 2013/14

For the year ended 31st March  2014 2013 

  Rs. Rs.

8.1 Current Income Tax Expense
Accounting Profit Before Taxation  77,234,190 56,434,242
Aggregate Disallowable Items  10,295,779 19,375,974
Aggregate Allowable Items  (6,361,302) (18,923,596)
Total Statutory Income  81,168,667 56,886,620
Other Source of Income  - 157,896
Taxable Income  81,168,667 57,044,516

Tax at 10% (on Storage Income)  1,281,200 444,758
Tax at 28%  19,139,866 14,727,143
Less : Tax Credits  - (22,153)
  20,421,066 15,149,748

9. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of earnings per share is based on the profit after tax for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders divided by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year and calculated as follows;

  2014 2013

Profit attributable to Ordinary Share Holders (Rs.)  56,200,189 39,777,426
Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares  114,000,000 114,000,000
Earnings Per Share (Rs.)  0.49 0.35

10. DIVIDEND PER SHARE

The calculation of the dividend per share is based on the dividend paid for the year divided by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares in issue as at balance date and calculated as follows;

  2014 2013

Dividend Paid (Rs.)  19,380,000 28,500,000
Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares  114,000,000 114,000,000
Dividend Per Share (Rs.)  0.17 0.25

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

  Motor Furniture & Office Weighing Computer Total 

 Vehicles Fittings Equipment Scales Equipment 

Cost Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance as at 1st April 2013 7,465,677 10,235,449 10,125,840 1,027,588 10,005,005 38,859,558
Additions during the Year 6,652,730 325,270 561,203 197,516 331,800 8,068,519
Balance as at 31st March 2014 14,118,407 10,560,719 10,687,043 1,225,104 10,336,805 46,928,078

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 1st April 2013 3,628,735 4,071,603 4,551,621 558,902 8,590,927 21,401,789
Charge for the Year 2,075,918 1,275,298 1,022,669 122,843 1,004,986 5,501,714
Balance as at 31st March 2014 5,704,654 5,346,901 5,574,290 681,745 9,595,913 26,903,503

Carrying Amount

Net Book Value As at 31st March 2014 8,413,753 5,213,818 5,112,753 543,358 740,892 20,024,575
Net Book Value As at 31st March 2013 3,836,942 6,163,845 5,574,219 468,685 1,414,078 17,457,768

12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As at 31st March  2014 2013 

Cost  Rs. Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the Year  4,780,160 3,913,995
Additions during the Year  669,338 866,165
Balance at the end of the Year  5,449,498 4,780,160

Accumulated Amortisation

Balance at the beginning of the Year  3,153,283 2,681,377
Amortization for the Year  644,415 471,906
Balance at the end of the Year  3,797,698 3,153,283
Net Book Value as at 31st March 2014  1,651,800 1,626,877

Intangible Assets include Computer Software.
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As at 31st March  2014 2013 

  Rs. Rs.

13. LOANS TO TEA SUPPLIERS

Receivable after One Year (Note 13.1)  97,632,963 123,648,586
Receivable within One Year (Note 13.2)  39,333,943 46,799,776
  136,966,906 170,448,362

13.1 Receivable after One Year
Loans to Tea Suppliers  214,033,280 202,239,351
Less: Specific Provision of Impairment  (116,400,317) (78,590,765)
  97,632,963 123,648,586

13.2 Receivable within One Year
Loans to Tea Suppliers  39,333,943 46,799,776
  39,333,943 46,799,776

14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade Receivables  160,771,754 243,214,641
Advances to Tea Suppliers  882,173,958 540,476,704
Deposits and Prepayments  24,617,009 24,520,101
Staff Loan Receivables  15,543,870 2,227,094
Salary and Festival Advances  3,119,175 2,238,785
Other Receivables  4,769,533 3,554,379
WHT Receivables  26,544 22,153
Total Trade and Other Receivables  1,091,021,843 816,253,857

15. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Favourable Balances

Fixed Deposit  4,608,325 -
Cash at Bank  164,932,810 33,139,130
Cash in Hand  95,340 65,240
  169,636,474 33,204,370

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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As at 31st March  2014 2013 

  Rs. Rs.

15. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Contd.)

Unfavourable Balances

Bank Overdrafts  (502,561,642) (548,499,962)

Cash and Cash Equivalents for Cash Flow Purpose  (332,925,167) (515,295,592)

Capital Alliance Holdings Limited has provided the following bank overdraft guarantees.

Name of the Bank Value of the 

 Guarantee (Rs) Mn

DFCC Vardana 100
Nations Trust Bank 150
Seylan Bank 50
Commercial Bank 50
Sampath Bank 50

As at 31st March  2014 2013 

  Rs. Rs.

16. DEFERRED TAXATION

Balance at the beginning of the Year  (348,798) 1,309,907
Charge/(Reversal) for the Year  (612,934) (1,658,705)
Balance at the end of the Year  (961,732) (348,798)

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method in respect of temporary difference between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred Tax has been computed taking into 
consideration the effective tax rate of 28%. The deferred tax provision as at the year end made up as follows;
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 2014 2013
 Temporary Tax Temporary Tax 

 Difference Effect Difference Effect 

 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

On Property, Plant and Equipment (13,520,840) (3,785,835) (9,506,463) (2,661,810)
On Retirement Benefit Obligations 10,086,081 2,824,103 8,260,757 2,313,012
 (3,434,759) (961,732) (1,245,706) (348,798)

As at 31st March  2014 2013 

  Rs. Rs.

17. STATED CAPITAL

Issued and Fully Paid
114,000,000 Ordinary Shares   128,000,000 128,000,000
   128,000,000 128,000,000

18. INTEREST BEARING BORROWINGS

Payable within One Year (Note 18.1)   494,066,334 133,989,105
   494,066,334 133,989,105

18.1 Payable within One Year
Commercial Papers (Note 18.2)   484,066,334 128,989,117
DFCC Bank Term Loan (Note 18.3)   - 4,999,988
NDB Term Loan (Note 18.5)   10,000,000 -
   494,066,334 133,989,105

18.2 Commercial Papers
Balance at the beginning of the Year   128,989,117 150,000,000
Issued during the Year   479,584,717 125,000,000
Interest on Commercial Paper   25,139,614 18,410,068
Interest Paid on Commercial Paper   (20,657,997) (14,420,951)
Redeemed during the Year   (128,989,117) (150,000,000)
Balance at the end of the Year   484,066,334 128,989,117

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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Commercial Paper was invested by the Capital Alliance Finance PLC at the rate of 13.5% p.a. No securities were pledged. Commercial 
paper amounting to Rs.75 Mn as at the year end made up as follows;

   Commercial 

   Paper I

Amount (Rs.)  75,000,000
Issued Date  26th February 2014
Redemption Date  26th May 2014
Rate of Interest  13.5% p.a

Commercial Papers were invested by Capital Alliance High Yield Fund. No securities were pledged. The Company has issued 
Commercial paper amounting to Rs.304,584,717 as at the year end made up as follows;

 Commercial Commercial Commercial Commercial 

 Paper I Paper II Paper III Paper IV

Amount (Rs.) 35,503,532 20,850,405 32,989,783 50,000,000
Issued Date 18th March 2014 8th January 2014 25th March 2014 8th January 2014
Redemption Date 15th October 2014 9th October 2014 25th October 2014 8th August 2014
Rate of Interest 13.65% 13.75% 13.65% 13.75%

 Commercial Commercial Commercial Commercial 

 Paper V Paper VI Paper VII Paper VIII

Amount (Rs.) 20,000,000 50,000,000 20,000,000 65,000,000
Issued Date 24th January 2014 18th February 2014 5th March 2014 25th March 2014
Redemption Date 23rd April 2014 9th June 2014 10th December 2014 23rd June 2014
Rate of Interest 13.50% 13.90% 13.50% 12.75%

 Commercial 

 Paper IX

Amount (Rs.) 10,240,997
Issued Date 31st March 2014
Redemption Date 3rd December 2014
Rate of Interest 13.90%
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Commercial Paper was invested by MCSL Investments at the rate of 12.75% p.a. No securities were pledged. Commercial paper 
amounting to Rs.100 Mn as at the year end was made up as follows;

    Commercial 

    Paper I

Amount (Rs.)    100,000,000
Issued Date    25th March 2014
Redemption Date    30th June 2014
Rate of Interest    12.75%

As at 31st March  2014 2013 

  Rs. Rs.

18.3 DFCC Bank Term Loan
Balance at the beginning of the Year  4,999,988 9,999,992
Repayments made during the Year  (4,999,988) (5,000,004)
Balance at the end of the Year  - 4,999,988

Amount Payable within One Year  - (4,999,988)

Rate of Interest : AWPLR + 2%
Security : Corporate Guarantee from Capital Alliance Holding Limited

18.4 Debentures
Balance at the beginning of the Year  - 50,000,000
Redeemed during the Year  - (50,000,000)
Balance at the end of the Year  - -

18.5 NDB Term Loan
Balance at the beginning of the Year  - -
Obtained during the Year  20,000,000 -
Repayments made during the Year  (10,000,000) -
Balance at the end of the Year  10,000,000 -

Amount Payable within One Year  10,000,000 -

Amount Payable after One Year  - -

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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As at 31st March  2014 2013 

  Rs. Rs.

19. LOAN PAYABLE TO CAPITAL ALLIANCE FINANCE PLC

Balance at the begining of the Year  - -
Loan obtained during the Year  6,400,000 -
Payment during the year  (341,304) -
Balance at the end of the Year  6,058,696 -

Amount Payable within One Year  1,118,614 -

Amount Payable after One Year  4,940,082 -

20. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Balance at the beginning of the Year  8,260,757 6,738,014
Provision made during the Year (Note 20.3)  2,840,949 2,484,018
Payments made during the Year  (1,015,625) (961,275)
Balance at the end of the Year  10,086,081 8,260,757

20.1 Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet
Present Value of unfunded Obligations  10,086,081 8,260,757
Present Value of funded Obligations  - -
Total Present Value of Obligations  10,086,081 8,260,757
Fair Value of Plan Assets  - -
Present Value of Net Obligations  10,086,081 8,260,757
Unrecognised net acturial gains / (losses)  - -
Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations  10,086,081 8,260,757

20.2 Movement in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations
Balance at the beginning of the Year  8,260,757 6,738,014
Current Service Cost  908,683 1,658,336
Interest Cost  1,559,627 750,862
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss  372,639 74,820
Paid during the Year  (1,015,625) (961,275)
Balance at the end of the Year  10,086,081 8,260,757
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As at 31st March  2014 2013 
  Rs. Rs.

20.3 Amount Recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
Current Service Cost  1,559,627 1,658,336
Interest Cost  908,683 750,862
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss  372,639 74,820
  2,840,949 2,484,018

20.4 The actuarial valuations have been carried out by Actuarial and Management Consultants (Private) Limited for retiring gratuity 
for employees as at 31st March 2014. The valuation method used by the actuaries to value the benefits is the “Project Unit Credit 
(PUC)” method recommended by Sri Lanka Accounting Standard No. 19 (LKAS 19) - “Employee Benefits”.

20.5 The Key Assumptions used by the actuary include the following;
 - Discount Rate  10.5% 11%
 - Expected Annual Average Salary Increment  8% 10%
 - Retiring Age  55 Years 55 Years

As at 31st March  2014 2013 
  Rs. Rs.

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade Payables  188,212,715 109,084,445
Accrued Expenses  6,746,225 2,232,282
Provisions for Expenses  8,806,384 2,574,335
Other Payables  1,776,725 4,937,995
  205,542,049 118,829,057

22. AMOUNT DUE TO PARENT COMPANY

Capital Alliance Holdings Limited
Balance at the beginning of the year  71,712,442 101,388,847
Advances obtained during the Year  30,000,000 180,000,000
Interest charged during the Year  6,527,465 25,323,595
Repayments made during the Year  (108,239,907) (235,000,000)
Balance at the end of the year  - 71,712,442

Rate of Interest : 17.5% p.a
Purpose : Fund the Working Capital

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

23.1 Financial Instruments - Statement of Financial Positions

The Financial Instrument recognized in the statement of Financial Position is as follows;

As at 31st March  2014 2013 

  Rs. Rs.

Financial Assets

Non Current Assets
Loans to Tea Suppliers  97,632,963 123,648,586
  97,632,963 123,648,586

Current Assets
Trade and Other Receivables  1,091,021,843 816,253,857
Loan Given to Tea suppliers  39,333,943 46,799,776
  1,130,355,786 863,053,633

Cash and Cash Equivalents  169,636,474 33,204,370
  1,397,625,223 1,019,906,589

Financial Liabilities

Non Current Liabilities
Loan Payable to Related Party  4,940,082 -
  4,940,082 -

Current Liabilities
Interest Bearing Borrowings  494,066,334 133,989,105
Loan Payable to Related Party  1,118,614 -
Trade and Other Payable  205,542,049 118,829,057
Amount Due to Parent Company  - 71,712,442
Tax Payables  13,717,200 7,560,332
  714,444,197 332,090,936

Bank Overdrafts  502,561,641 548,499,962
  1,221,945,919 880,590,898
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Financial Risk Management

Overview
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

• Credit risk
• Liquidity risk
• Market risk

This note presents qualitative and quantitative information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, The Company’s 
objectives, policies and measuring and managing risk.

Risk Management Framework

The Board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework 
The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risk faced by the Company to set appropriate 
risk limits and controls, and to monitor risk and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to 
reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter party to a financial instrument fails to meet it’s 
contractual obligation, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers, investments and forward contracts.

Company’s credit exposure is closely monitored. Credit given is reviewed with pre-determined approval procedures and contractual 
agreements are made for every high value transaction.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at 31st 
March:
  Carrying Carrying 

  Amounts (Rs.) Amounts (Rs.) 

  2014 2013

Loans to Tea Suppliers- Non Current  97,632,963 123,648,586
Trade and Other Receivables  1,091,021,843 816,253,857
Loan Given to Tea suppliers - Current  39,333,943 46,799,776
  1,227,988,749 986,702,219

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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The aging of Trade and Other Receivables and Loans to Tea Suppliers at the reporting date was;

As at 31st March 2014 2013
 Gross Impairment Gross Impairment 

 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Past due 0-365 days 1,130,355,786 - 863,053,633 -
More than one year 214,033,280 116,400,317 202,239,351 78,590,765
 1,344,389,066 116,400,317 1,065,292,984 78,590,765

Based on historic default rates, the company believe that, apart from the above, no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of 
Trade Receivables and Loans given to Tea Suppliers.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with it’s financial liabilities that 
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments and excluding the impact 
of netting agreements.

As at 31st March 2014
 Carrying Contractual One Year More than 

 amount cash flows or less one year 

 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Other Financial Liabilities
Trade and Other Payable 205,542,049 205,542,049 205,542,049 -
 205,542,049 205,542,049 205,542,049 -

As at 31st March 2013
 Carrying Contractual One Year More than 

 amount cash flows or less one year 

 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Other Financial Liabilities
Trade and Other Payable 118,829,057 118,829,057 118,829,057 -
Amount Due to Parent Company 71,712,442 71,712,442 71,712,442 -
 190,541,499 190,541,499 190,541,499 -
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Market Risk

Market Risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates etc., will affect the Company’s 
income or the value of its holding of Financial Instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market 
risk exposures within acceptable parameters while optimizing the returns.

Currency risk

At the reporting date the Company has not been exposed to currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. The exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rate relates primarily to the company’s long term debt obligation 
and investments with floating interest rates.

At the reporting date the Company has not been exposed to interest rate risk.

24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Company Names of Directors Nature of Interest Nature of 

Transaction

Amount 

(Paid)/ 

Received 2014 

Rs.

Amount 

(Paid)/ 

Received 2013 

Rs.

Agarapathana Plantations Limited Mr. Chrisantha Perera Director Brokerage Income 2,290,676 1,713,092

Storage Income 111,948 734

Interest Income 5,296,859 1,234,689

Kotagala Plantations PLC Mr. Chrisantha Perera Director Brokerage Income 4,154,315 2,267,635

Storage Income 1,512,586 886,313

Interest Income 6,299,355 663,590

Insite Factories (Private) Limited Mr. Chrisantha Perera Chairman Brokerage Income 3,182,080 2,065,368

Storage Income 835,608 644,228

Interest Income 190,919 -

Capital Alliance Holdings Limited Mr. W.A.T.Fernando Director Advances Obtained 30,000,000 180,000,000

Ms. N.T.M.S.Cooray Director Settlements made (108,239,907) (235,000,000)

Interest Paid on 
Advances

(6,527,465) (25,323,595)

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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Company Names of Directors Nature of Interest Nature of 

Transaction

Amount 

(Paid)/ 

Received 2014 

Rs.

Amount 

(Paid)/ 

Received 2013 

Rs.

Capital Alliance Finance PLC Mr. Chrisantha Perera Chairman Commercial Papers 
Issued

125,000,000 125,000,000

Mr. W.A.T.Fernando Director Settlements made (175,000,000) (7,364,862)

Ms. N.T.M.S.Cooray Director Interest Paid on 
Commercial Papers

(10,807,758) -

Loan Obtained 6,400,000 -

Capital Repaid (341,304) -

Interest Paid (405,880) -

Sampath Bank Mr. R.P Pathirana Director Interest Paid on 
Overdraft

(17,529,769) -

24.1 Transactions with Key Management Personnel (KMP)
According to Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 24 (LKAS 24) “Related Party Disclosure”, Key Management Personnel are those having 
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity. Accordingly, the Company has 
identified Directors as KMP and following have been paid to KMP’s of the Company.

  2014 2013 

  Rs. Rs.

Salaries, Bonus and Allowances Paid  16,532,692 11,627,558
Consultancy Fees Paid  600,000 300,000
  17,132,692 11,927,558

Key Management Personnel are entitled to the Employee Share Option Scheme as mentioned in Note No.25.
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25. EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 8th August 2013, the Company established an Employee Share Option Scheme that entitle Key Management Personnel to purchase 
shares in the Company. The Fair value of the share option is valued at Rs.69,534/- as at 31st March 2014 and the terms related to the 
grants of the share option are as follows.

Grant date 8th August 2013

No. of options granted 4,000,000

Vesting period One third (1/3) of the options in the first year ending 7th August 2014
 One third (1/3) of the options in the second year ending 7th August 2015
 One third (1/3) of the options in the third year ending 7th August 2016

Exercise Period : 2 years from the date of the Vesting

Exercise Price Rs.4.21

The price per share shall be the volume weighted average price taking into consideration all share transactions of the relevant 
security during the 30 market days immediately preceding the grant date.

The Directors have declared that the Company has not, directly or indirectly, provided funds for the Employee Share Option Scheme

26. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There were no outstanding material capital commitments and contingent liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date.

27. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

There have been no material events occurring after the Balance Sheet date except for the following that would require adjustments to 
or disclosure in the Financial Statements.

The Board of Directors of the Company approved the payment of the first and final dividend of Rs. 0.25 (25 cents) per share on 27th June 
2014 for the year ended 31st March 2014.

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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28. COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

To facilitate comparison and where relevant, balances pertaining to the previous year have been reclassified as follows;

  As per Audited Re-classified Change 

  Financial Statement 

  Rs. Rs. Rs.

Interest Bearing Borrowings  129,999,988 133,989,105 3,989,117
Provision for Expenses  6,563,452 2,574,335 (3,989,117)
  136,563,440 136,563,440 -
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1. Market prices recorded during the year ended 31st March  2014  2013

Market price per share 
Highest during the year   Rs.5.80 (16/04/13) Rs.7.00 (12/09/12) 
Lowest during the year   Rs.3.20 (04/09/13) Rs.4.10 (11/05/12) 
As at end of the year   Rs.4.20 (31/03/14) Rs.5.30 (31/03/13)

2. Net Asset Value Per Share  1.63 1.31

3. Earnings Per Share  0.49 0.35

4. Dividends Per Share (Proposed)  0.25 0.17

5. Dividends pay-out Ratio  50% 49%

6. Directors’ Shareholdings as at 31st March
  2014 2013

Mr C P R Perera  1,928,800 1,928,800
Mr W A T Fernando  2,000,210 2,000,210
Mr B R L Fernando  7,900 7,900
Ms N T S Cooray  Nil Nil
Ms H M S Perera  100 100
Mr R P Pathirana  Nil Nil
Mr D G W De Silva  Nil Nil
Mr M J C S Perera  Nil Nil

7. Share Distribution
Shareholding as at 31st March 2014
 From  To  No of Holders No of Shares %

 1 - 1,000  971 462,788 0.40
 1,001 - 10,000  581 2,137,411 1.88
 10,001 - 100,000  111 3,245,893 2.85
 100,001 - 1,000,000  23 5,397,664 4.73
 Over  1,000,000  05 102,756,244 90.14
     1,691 114,000,000 100.00

Categories of Shareholders
Local Individuals  1,640 16,442,611 14.42
Local Institutions  39 97,031,005 85.12
Foreign Individuals  12 526,384 0.46
Foreign Institutions  0 0 0.00
     1,691 114,000,000 100.00

Shareholder Information
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8. 20 Major Shareholders

Name No. Of  No. Of  

  Shares  Shares 

  As At  As At 

  31/03/2014 (%) 31/03/2013 (%)

1. SEYLAN BANK PLC/CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LTD 92,747,000 81.357
 CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LTD   81,361,490 71.370
 WALDOCK MACKENZIE LIMITED/CAPITAL ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LTD   11,400,000 10.000
2. MR. K E H DE ALWIS 4,263,030 3.740 3,730,090 3.272
3. MR.W A T FERNANDO 2,000,210 1.755 2,000,210 1.755
4. MR.C P R PERERA 1,928,800 1.692 1,928,800 1.692
5. ASSOCIATED ELECTRICAL CORPORATION LTD 1,817,204 1.594 - - 
6. PAN ASIA BANKING CORPORATION PLC/MR.A.W.L.R SILVA & 
 MRS. P M ABAYASEKARA 1,000,000 0.877
 MR.A W L R SILVA AND MRS.P M ABAYASEKARA - - 1,000,000 0.877
7. OPULANT FUND (PRIVATE) LIMITED 500,000 0.439 509,809 0.447
8. MR.U K C GUNAWARDENA 400,000 0.351 400,000 0.351
9. WALDOCK MACKENZIE LIMITED/MR. M. UDAYASUNDER & 
 MRS. M U VANITHA KUMARI 383,823 0.337 - - 
10. MR. D M P DISANAYAKE 306,000 0.268 406,000 0.356
11. MR K H S DESHAPRIYA 250,000 0.219 - - 
12. MR.R A RAJAPAKSE 245,399 0.215 223,099 0.196
13. MR.D A EDUSSURIYA 225,000 0.197 200,000 0.175
14. MR.N.A.WITHANA 208,000 0.182 1,000 0.001
15. MR. W. JINADASA 207,461 0.182 - - 
16. MR T JANARAJ 163,779 0.144 - - 
17. MRS. L W DHAMMIKA 158,000 0.139 158,000 0.139
18. MR. L.U.K SAMARANAYAKA 150,000 0.132 - - 
19. VISION CARE OPTICAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 150,000 0.132 150,000 0.132
20. MR.G.M.WANIGASEKARA 135,000 0.118 95,800 0.084
  107,238,706 94.069 103,564,298 90.847
  6,761,294 5.931 10,435,702 9.153
  114,000,000 100.00 114,000,000 100.00

9. Public Holding

Percentage of Public Holding as at 31st March 2014 - 14.95%
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Fifth 
Annual General Meeting of the Company 
will be held at the Auditorium of Ceylon 
Chamber of Commerce, 50, Nawam 
Mawatha, Colombo 02 on 19th September 
2014 at 10.30 a.m. for the following 
purposes.

1. To receive and consider the Annual 
Report of the Board of Directors 
on the affairs of the Company and 
the Statement of Accounts for the 
year ended 31st March 2014 with the 
Report of the Auditors thereon. 

2. To pass the ordinary resolution 
set out below to re-elect Mr. B R L 
Fernando who is 72 years of age as a 
Director of the Company;

 “IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED THAT Mr. 
B R L Fernando who reached 70 years 
of age on 1st August 2012, be and is 
hereby re-elected as a Director of the 
Company and it is hereby declared 
as provided for in Section 211 of the 
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 that 
the age limit of 70 years referred 
to in Section 210 of the Companies 
Act shall not apply to Mr. B R L 
Fernando.”

3. To pass the ordinary resolution set 
out below to re-elect as a Director 
Mr. C P R Perera who reached the 
age of 70 years on 5th March 2014, in 
terms of Section 211 of the  
Companies Act No.07 of 2007; 

Notice of Annual General Meeting

 “IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED THAT  
Mr. C P R Perera who reached 70 
years of age on 5th March 2014 be and 
is hereby re-elected a Director of the 
Company and it is hereby declared 
as provided for in Section 211 of the 
Companies Act No.07 of 2007 that 
the age limit of 70 years referred to 
in Section 210 of the Companies Act 
shall not apply to Mr. C P R Perera.”

4. To re-elect Mr. R P Pathirana who 
retires by rotation in terms of Article 
87 (i) of the Articles of Association of 
the Company as a Director.

  
5.  To appoint Messrs. KPMG, Chartered 

Accountants, as the Auditors of 
the Company and to authorize the 
Directors to fix their remuneration. 

6. To authorize the Directors to 
determine donations for the year 
ending 31st March 2015 and up to 
the date of the next Annual General 
Meeting.

By order of the Board
CEYLON TEA BROKERS PLC

P W CORPORATE SECRETARIAL 
(PVT) LTD
Director / Secretaries

27th August 2014
Colombo

Notes
1. A Shareholder entitled to attend and 

vote at the meeting is entitled to 
appoint a proxy to attend and vote on 
behalf of him/her.

2. A proxy need not be a Shareholder of 
the Company.

3. The form of proxy is enclosed for this 
purpose.

4. The completed Form of Proxy 
must be deposited at the Office of 
the Secretaries, P W Corporate 
Secretarial (Pvt) Ltd, No.3/17, Kynsey 
Road, Colombo 8, not later than 47 
hours prior to the time appointed for 
the holding of the Meeting.
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I/We..………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..…………………………………..………………(NIC No. ……………………………………). 

of .………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. being a member/members 

of CEYLON TEA BROKERS PLC hereby appoint …………………..………………………………………………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………………..of  

…………..………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..…………………………………………………………..…………(or failing him)

Mr. C P R Perera of Colombo or failing him*
Mr. W A T Fernando of Colombo or failing him*
Mr. B R L Fernando of Colombo or failing him*
Mr. D G W De Silva  of Colombo or failing him*
Ms. N T M S Cooray of Colombo or failing her*
Ms. H M S Perera of Colombo or failing him*
Mr. M J C S Perera of Colombo or failing him*
Mr. R P Pathirana of Colombo

as my/our* proxy to represent and speak and vote for me/us* and on my/our* behalf at the Fifth Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 
19th September 2014 at 10.30 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof and every poll which may be taken in consequence of the aforesaid meeting.

I/We,* the undersigned, hereby authorize my/our proxy to speak and vote for me/us* and on my /our* behalf in accordance with the preference as 
indicated below

  For  Against

1.   To receive and consider the Annual Report of the Board of  Directors and the Statements of Accounts for the year ended 
  31st March 2014 with the Report of the Auditors thereon

2. To pass the ordinary resolution set out under item 2 of the Notice of Meeting for the re-election of Mr. B R L Fernando

3. To pass the ordinary resolution set out under item 3 of the Notice of Meeting for the re-election of Mr. C P R Perera

4.  To re-elect Mr. R P Pathirana as a Director in terms of Article 87 (i) of the Articles of Association of the Company

5. To appoint Messrs. KPMG Chartered Accountants as Auditors of the Company and to authorize the Directors to fix their 
remuneration.

6. To authorize the Directors to determine donations for the year ending 31st March 2015 and up to the date of the next Annual 
General Meeting. 

In witness my/our* hands this ……………. day of ……………. Two Thousand and Fourteen. 

* Please delete as appropriate

……………………………………….
Signature of Member/s

Notes: 1. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.
 2. Instructions as to completion appear overleaf.

Form of Proxy



INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION

1. Kindly perfect the Form of Proxy by filling in legibly your full name 
address and the National Identity Card number and signing in the 
space provided and filling in the date of signature. 

2. The completed Form of Proxy should be deposited at the Office of the 
Secretaries, P W Corporate Secretarial (Pvt) Ltd, No.3/17, Kynsey Road, 
Colombo 8, Sri Lanka on or before forty seven (47) hours before the time 
appointed for the Meeting.

3. If you wish to appoint a person other than the Chairman or a Director 
of the Company as your Proxy, please insert the relevant details in 
the space provided (above the names of the Board of Directors) on the 
Proxy Form.

4. If the Form of Proxy is signed by an Attorney, the relative Power of 
Attorney should accompany the Form of Proxy for registration if such 
Power of Attorney has not already been registered with the Company. 

5. If the appointer is a Company / Incorporated body this Form must be 
executed in accordance with the Articles of Association / Statute.

Form of Proxy Contd.
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